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TABATHA MARTIN, TRACY
MARTIN, T.M., a minor, by her
parents and next friends
TABATHA MARTIN and TRACY
MARTIN, KIONINA KENESO,
K.H., a minor, by her next friend
KIONINA KENESO, TANAKO
YUG, GABRIEL YUG, G.Y., A
minor, by his next friends,
TANAKO YUG and GABRIEL
YUG, DIANA CHONIONG, JON
JOSEPHSON, NORMA MANUEL,
MENSI RIKAT, ARI RODEN,
RIMUO RUNTE, and SNOPIA
WEINEI, individually and on
behalf of the class of homeless
or formerly homeless individuals
whose property was seized and
destroyed by City and County of
Honolulu officials,

Plaintiffs,

VS

CITY AND COUNTY OF
HONOLULU, a municipal
corporation, and DOE
EMPLOYEES OF CITY AND
COUNTY OF HONOLULU 1-100,

Civil No.

COMPLAINT FOR
DECLARATORY AND
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND
DAMAGES; SUMMONS

lcrAss AcTroNl

Defendants.

CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT FOR DECLARATORY AND
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF AND DAMAGES
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I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. The individual Plaintiffs asserting this class action

complaint are homeless or have been in the recent past. Most, if not

all, have a high likelihood of being homeless in the near future.

Some of the Plaintiffs are employed but still cannot afford

permanent residences. Some of the Plaintiffs cannot live in shelters,

either because they are ineligible, or because the shelters are full, or

because they fear for their physical safety given the conditions in the

shelters. Plaintiffs have all had, at most times in the past year, no

choice but to live on public property. As a consequence of their

poverty and homelessness, Plaintiffs either currently have, have in

the past had, and/or will in the future have, no place to store their

property other than on the sidewalk or on other public grounds.

2. Plaintiffs'property includes items that are required for

mere existence. Their property includes tents, tarps, and makeshift

shelters that provide Plaintiffs protection from the elements. It

includes the few items that they owrr for sleeping, such as sleeping

bags, blankets, and pillows. It includes the canned food they eat. It

includes identification papers, without which it is even more difficult

3942624v1 112146-1
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for homeless persons to obtain employment, access to shelters, and

other benefits

3. Some of Plaintiffs live on the streets with their families,

including minor children. Some of the Plaintiffs are minor children.

Among their little property are items that Plaintiffs use for the care

of their children, including their children's clothing, food, and

identification.

4. All the Plaintiffs have suffered a common injury.

Employees and f or agents of the City and County of Honolulu (the

"City"l seized Plaintiffs' property in one or more "sweeps" of the areas

where Plaintiffs were living. On some, if not all, occasions, the City

provided no prior notice of the sweeps and gave Plaintiffs no

opportunity to reclaim their property after the sweeps, but rather

seized and immediately destroyed the property.

5. The City knew or objectively should have known that

Plaintiffs'property, which it immediately destroyed, was not

abandoned. The items were in well-populated homeless

enca.mpments that were actively in use. In some cases Plaintiffs, or

other victims of the sweeps, made it clear that their property was

4942624v1112146-1
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being taken. But the City seized the property and destroyed it

anyway.

6. The destruction of Plaintiffs'property has caused

incredible hardships for Plaintiffs and disruption in their lives above

and beyond just the monetary value of the property. For example,

the destruction of Plaintiffs' food left them hungry. Several Plaintiffs

were only one or two years old at the time of the sweeps, and the

City's actions left these children - and their parents /ggardia.ns -
devastated and hungry. The destruction of Plaintiffs' tents and

other shelter materials left them exposed to rain and wind. Some

Plaintiffs had to take time off work to replace items the City

destroyed.

7. The City's actions prolonged the Plaintiffs'homelessness

by forcing Plaintiffs to spend their limited resources replacing food

and shelter materials, rather than saving those resources for more

permanent housing.

8. Although Plaintiffs were not given prior notice that their

property would be seized, prior notice would not have mattered.

Becamse they were homeless, they had no place to take their

property that would not violate the law. They could not store it on
g42624v1t12146-1 5
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private property without subjecting themselves to penalties for

trespass. They could not store their belongings on City property,

because the City's laws prohibit them doing so.

9. The City's actions in summarily seizing and destroying

their possessions violated Plaintiffs'rights in their property under

the United States Constitution.

10. Plaintiffs bring this action because they desire, and are

entitled to, compensation for the violation of their constitutional

rights, including but not limited to reimbursement for the value of

their destroyed property. Plaintiffs seek to represent a class of other

homeless persons who have also had their property seized and

immediately destroyed by the City, so that those individuals may

also receive compensation. Plaintiffs also seek injunctive relief

prohibiting the City from seizing and immediately destroying their

property simply because they are homeless.

IT. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1 1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter and

the parties pursuant to 28 U.S.C. SS 1331 (federal question) and

1343 (civil rights) as well as 42 U.S.C S 1983 (civil action for

deprivation of rights).

6942624v1112146-1
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12. Venue is proper in the District of Hawai'i pursu ant to 28

U.S.C. S 1391(b) because the events giving rise to Plaintiffs'claims

occurred in this District.

III. THE PARTIES

13. Plaintiffs Tabatha and Tracy Martin, and their 4-year-old

daughter, Plaintiff T.M., reside in the City and County of Honolulu

They are homeless, and as a consequence they maintain their

belongings on public property.

14. Plaintiff Kionina Keneso, and her 3-year-old

granddaughter, Plaintiff K.H., reside in the City and County of

Honolulu. They are homeless, and as a conseqlrence they maintain

their belongings on public property.

15. Plaintiffs Tanako and Gabriel Yug and their minor

nephew, Plaintiff G.Y., reside in the City and County of Honolulu.

They have at times in the past been homeless, and as a

conseqrrence, they maintained their belongings on public property.

If Mr. Yug loses his current job, the Yugs have a high likelihood of

being homeless again in the near future.

L6. Plaintiff Diana Choniong, and her husband, Plaintiff

Rimuo Runte, reside in the City and County of Honolulu. They are
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homeless. Until very recently they were unsheltered, and as a

consequence, maintained their belongings on public property; they

have a high likelihood of being without shelter again.

17 . Plaintiff Jon Josephson is a resident of the City and

County of Honolulu. He has at times in the past been homeless,

and as a consequence, he has maintained his belongings on public

property. He has a high likelihood of being homeless again in the

near future.

18. Plaintiff Norma Manuel is a resident of the City and

County of Honolulu. She has at times in the past been homeless,

and as a consequence, she has maintained her belongings on public

property. She has a high likelihood of being homeless again in the

nea.r future.

19. Plaintiff Mensi Rikat is a resident of the City and County

of Honolulu. She is homeless, and as a consequ.ence, she maintains

her belongings on public property.

20. Plaintiff Ari Roden is a resident of the City and County of

Honolulu. He is homeless, and as a consequence, he maintains his

belongings on public property.
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2I. Plaintiff Snopia Weinei is a resident of the City and

County of Honolulu. She is homeless, and as a consequence, she

maintains her belonging on public property.

22. Defendant City and County of Honolulu ("City") is a

political subdivision and municipal corporation within the State of

Hawai'i, and includes the Honolulu Police Department and the

Honolulu Department of Facility Maintenance

23. The violations of Plaintiffs'Fourth and Fourteenth

Amendment rights, as set forth herein, were the result of employees

andf or agent of Defendant City acting pursu¿ul.t to the official

policies, practices, and/or customs of the City, andf or because

those actions have been approved, ratified, arrdf or enforced by

persons and/or entities with decision-making authority. The City is

sued both for damages to redress past violations of Plaintiffs' Fourth

and Fourteenth Amendment rights and for prospective injunctive

relief intended to prevent future violations of Plaintiffs' rights.

24. At all relevant times and in all relevant respects,

Defendant (and all of its officials, employees, and agents, including

but not limited to Honolulu Police Department ("HPD") and

Department of Facility Maintena.nce ("DFM") Officers) has acted
942624v1t12146-1 9
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under color of state law, and Defendant is a "person" subject to suit

within the meaning of 42U.S.C. S 1983.

25. On information and belief, Defendant performed,

participated in, aided and/or abetted, and/or was deliberately

indifferent to the acts averred herein and thereby proximately

caused the injuries averred herein.

26. At all times relevant herein, all County ofhcials,

employees, and agents (including but not limited to HPD and DFM

officers) were acting pursuant to authority delegated or conferred by

Defendant City and, in doing or failing to do the things complained

of herein, were acting within the scope of that authority.

27. At all times relevant herein, Defendant and one or more of

its employees and agents were acting pursua.nt to the offîcial

policies, practices, and/or customs of the City, which have been

approved, ratified, andf or enforced by the persons and/or entities

with final decision-making authority.
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IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

Plaintiffs' Homelessness and Desperate Povertv

28. Plaintiffs are or have been homeless because they cannot afford

homes. They have lived on the streets not by choice, but because they

have had no other option.

29. Shelters are not a viable option for many Plaintiffs for a

number of reasons. Most notably, there is not nearly enough shelter

space to accommodate the nearly 2,OOO unsheltered homeless on O'ahu

on any given night; there are often no shelters on O'ahu with available

beds for women or families (or such shelter space that is available is

prohibitively far away from Plaintiffs'places of employment or Plaintiffs'

childrens' schools). Similarly, many (if not all) of Oahu's shelters require

government identification. For the Plaintiffs who had their identification

illegally seized and destroyed by the City, that factor can prohibit their

access to shelters, even if there were suffîcient space. Other Plaintiffs

reasonably fear that shelters are Lrnsanitary or unsafe for themselves

and/or their children.

30. Even if Plaintiffs had a choice and could lift themselves out of

the cycle that keeps them in homelessness, there have been periods of

time when there is simply nowhere for them to sleep and store their

942624v1t12146-'l 1 1

Case 1:15-cv-00363   Document 1   Filed 09/16/15   Page 11 of 48     PageID #: 11

Appendix A



property other than in public. Those Plaintiffs who have found

themselves some form of temporary shelter or housing are still in

precarious economic situations and are highly likely to be homeless again

in the near future. During the periods when Plaintiffs have been

unsheltered and homeless, the City's practices have subjected them to

the immediate seizure and destruction of their property.

The City's Ordinances and Practices Toward the Homeless

31. The City's laws effectively prohibit Plaintiffs from possessing

any property on the island of O'ahu at times when they have no shelter.

Moreover, a chasm has arisen between the City's laws and the City's

practices, making the real danger to the property of the homeless much

more harsh than one would imagine when reading the laws on the books.

32. The two City ordinances that prohibit Plaintiffs from possessing

property when they are homeless are the Stored Property Ordinance

("SPO"), Revised Ordinances of Honolulu ("ROH") S 29-L9.I et seq., and

the Sidewalk Nuisance Ordinance ("SNO"), ROH S 29-16.1 et seq.

33. The SPO provides that once the City issues notice to the

owners of property that is "stored" on public property, the owner has

twenty-four hours to remove the property, or it will be impounded. ROH

SS 29-19.3- L9.4. This impoundment occurs whether the property has
g42624v1t12'146-1 12

Case 1:15-cv-00363   Document 1   Filed 09/16/15   Page 12 of 48     PageID #: 12

Appendix A



been abandoned or not. Other than perishable goods, the City is required

to impound all property and store it for no less than 30 days before

destroying it. ROH S 19-19.5.

34. The SPO contains an additional clause that is particularly

devastating for the homeless: "moving the personal property to another

location on public property shall not be considered to be removing the

personal property from public property[.]" ROH 929-19.3(b). In other

words, an individual who receives an SPO notice must find some príuate

location to store her/his belongings; merely moving the belongings to

another sidewalk or park will result in the property's impoundment.

35. Therefore, even if a homeless person were to reclaim his or her

property from the City before its destruction, the property would be again

subject to impoundment and destruction as soon as it is placed on public

property, making retrieval from impound futile

36. The SNO is even more antagonistic toward the homeless.

Under the SNO, the City may seize property at any time without any

notice whatsoever if it is on or hanging over any sidewalk. ROH SS 29-

16.2- 16.3. As the Ordinance itself states, the property of homeless

persons "shall be subject to summaÐ/ removal." ROH g 29-16.3(a). The

SNO, like the SPO, requires the City to hold the property for a minimum
e42624v1t12146-1 13
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of 30 days before destroying it. ROH S 29-16.3(b). The SNO, like the

SPO, allows for the immediate destruction of some items (such as

perishable food items).

37. The SNO and SPO are particularly offensive to Plaintiffs'

constitutionally protected property rights when considering their joint

effect. Plaintiffs often have no feasible place to store their property other

than the sidewalk when they are homeless, but even if they were to

remove it to other public property, it would violate the SPO and still be

subject to impoundment. As described above, Plaintiffs often do not have

the ability to access shelters or the means to find perma.nent or

temporar5r housing. And even if they did, it would not save them from the

harsh effects of the SPO and SNO if they were to f,rnd themselves

homeless again, which often occurs. Whenever they have to store their

property on the sidewalk, it can be confiscated under the SNO. Unless

they can find shelter with 24 hours, which is most times a virtual

impossibility, their property will be subject to seizure under the SPO; if

they have previously received an SPO notice, the City can seize the

property immediately.
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38. Even if the City were to follow the SNO and SPO as written

(which it does not, as discussed more fully infral, the procedures violate

due process as applied to the Plaintiffs:

a. They allow for the immediate destruction of perishable

items, though these items are likely to be the food

items the homeless individuals intend to eat that d.y;

b. They require the owners to travel large distances to

reclaim the property, despite the fact they have no

means to do so;

c. They require the owners to pay a $ZOO.OO fee to collect

the belongings seized pursua.nt to the SNO, unless the

owner obtains a waiver. However, owners cannot

obtain a waiver unless they (a) go to the Department of

Facility Maintenance ("DFM") office in Kapolei (during

business hours only), (b) submit a six-page waiver

request (available only in English, see

http: / / v¡v,rw.honolulu.sov/rep / síte / dfrn / spo docs /reev

isedapplicaiontowaive sidewalknuisancefe e4 . 9 . 1 4 . p dÐ

(again, during business hours only), (c) provide a

mailing address (which some homeless individuals may
15942624v1 112146-1
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not have) to which the City can send its written

decision; (d) wait some undetermined period of time for

the City to rule upon the waiver request (despite the

fact that owners must reclaim the property itself within

30 days of seizure); then, if the waiver request is

granted, (e) take a second trip to a dífferenú Department

of Facility Maintenance office - this time, the DFM

baseyard in Halawa Valley (again, during business

hours only); and (f) have some means of transporting

all their belongings all at once (despite the fact that

most homeless individuals do not owrt a car, and must

rely on TheBus (which generally prohibits passengers

from bringing large objects on board)).

d. The City's SPO and SNO documents are written only in

English, violating Hawaii's Language Access Law (set

forth in Hawaii Revised Statutes ("HRS") chapter 32IC).

39. The City has applied the SPO and SNO to Plaintiffs in an

unconstitutional manner. While the SPO and SNO purport to prohibit the

City from summa.rily destroying everything but perishable goods, the
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City's practice has been to seize, and immediately destroy, Plaintiffs'

property.

The November 13. 2OL4 Kaka'ako Sweep

40. On November 13, 2OI4, tlre City conducted a sweep of the

Kaka'ako area that was not in compliance with the SNO, the SPO, or the

Constitution. Each of the Plaintiffs had property summarily seized and

immediately destroyed in that sweep

4I. The City's Kaka'ako sweep on November 13, 2OI4 resulted in

the immediate destruction of at least 3.4 tons of property. Plaintiffs'

property was among the material destroyed. The City impounded only a

single of bin full of material - including a skatebotrd, a razor scooter, and

three bedding items - from a woman who was nine months pregnant and

gave birth to her son ten days later. (Although that woman had

previously attempted to recover some of her property from impound, she

was unable to do so after the November 13,2014 sweep within the time

frame set forth by the City because of her pregn¿ìncy and childbirth.)

42. The City also seized and immediately destroyed property that

was inside the boundaries of the park (and not on a sidewalk), even

though only the SNO (which applies only to sidewalks) - and not tl:e SPO

- provides for immediate seizure of property.
s42624v1t12146-1 17
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43. The City appears to have taken the position that the property it

destroyed in the November 13,2014 sweep was trash or rubbish

Plaintiffs' loss of property, which is detailed further below, illustrates very

plainly that the material \Ã/'as not rubbish and could not reasonably be

mistaken as such.

44. For example, the following photos taken on November 13,2Ol4

in Kaka'ako show City workers taking a tent that looks both new and

clean and placing it, along with the objects inside of it, straight into a City

garbage truck.
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45. A minimum of seven City employees participated in the seizure

and immediate destruction of Plaintiffs'property in the November 13,

2OI4 sweep, thus demonstrating that the City has an understood policy,

custom, andf or practice of seizing and immediately destroying property.

The September 8, 2015 Kaka'ako Sweep

46. The City also conducted a sweep of a portion of the Kaka'ako

area- on September 8, 2015. The City publicized this sweep extensively

ahead of time, generating broad press coverage. The Mayor gave a press

conference standing beside the Governor, a U.S. Congressperson, and a

942624v1112'146-1 20
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U.S. Senator. See Suteep Notices coming Mondag, Honolulu Star-

Advertiser (August 28, 2015), available at

http: / I vrww.staradvertiser.com/newspremium / 2O1 50828 sweep notices

cominq monda]¡. html?id: 323 L9 37 6 I ;' Comp as sionate disruption' of

Kakaako homeless encampment begins next taeek, khon 2, avaJlable at

htto: I lk}:on2.com |2OLS /O9 I01 comrr as sionate - disruption- of-kakaako -

homeless- enc¿unoment-begins-next-week-2 / . If ever there was a time

that one would expect the sweep to conform with at least the minimal

protections of the SPO and SNO, one would expect it with the September

8, 20 15 sweep.

47. Rather than complying with the SPO and SNO, the notice to

the homeless persons affected that the City provided for the September 8,

2OI5 sweep made it clear that it was the City's intent to violate the SPO

and SNO.

48. rWhile the City provided individualized notices to some of the

individuals in Kaka'ako, the City also made clear (through signs posted

throughout the area) that tl:^e entire rnauka section of Kaka'ako Gateway

Park would be swept, and the posted notices for the September 8, 2015

sweep lack four items of specific information that the SPO explicitly

requires notices issued under its authority to contain. ROH S 29- 19.a@1.
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49. Though the notice explicitly states that the sweep was being

conducted pursuant to the SPO and SNO, the content of the notice itself

made clear that the City intended to violate the SPO and SNO when it

seized property during the September 8,2015 sweep.

50. The SPO by its terms only specifically allows the destruction of

perishable items. ROH S 29-19.5(e). All other "personal property"

(defined term) must be maintained for at least 30 days. "Personal

property" is defined broadly to include "any and all tangible property, and

includes, but is not limited to, items, goods, materials...landl

structures...." ROH S 29- 19.2. The SNO is similarly broad regarding

what the City must maintain for 30 days. The City is required to store

any "sidewalk-nuisance" removed for at least 30 days. ROH S 29-

16.3(b)(1). "Sidewalk-nuisance" is defined to include "aÍry object or

collection of objects constructed, erected, installed, maintained, kept, or

operated on or over any sidewalk, including but not limited to structures,

stalls, stands, tents, furniture, and containers, and any of their contents

or attachments." ROH S 29- 16.2.

51. Under the SNO, the City also has the authority to disassemble

a structure for removal, but has no authority to destroy one. See ROH

2e-16.3(bl.
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52. The posted notice provided in advance of the September 8,

2OI5 sweep, however, states that the City intended to immediately

dispose of any "construction materials...poles, wooden structures, and

tarps...." In other words, despite the City's laws clearly providing that it

must store items such as structures and the materials of which they are

constructed, the notice for the September 8,2015 sweep stated that all

such items "utillberernoved and disposed of immediately." (Emphasis

added.)

53. The notice of the September 8, 2015 sweep perfectly illustrates

the City's actual practice of summarily destroying the property of

homeless persons. Even for what is likely its most well-planned and

publicized sweep to date, the City still cannot adhere to the minimal

standards it has set for itself by ordinance, and still will not refrain from

summarily destroying the property of its most destitute residents.

54. The notice regarding the September 8,2015 sweep prompts

other questions regarding the constitutional validity of the SPO and SNO

and the City's practices. For example, when the City posts notices,

homeless persons do not know whether they can rely on the ordinances

themselves or the notices posted in the area (which, again, are
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inconsistent with one another) as the official word from the City on what

items of their property will be destroyed

The Citv's General Practice of Summarilv Destroving Propertv

55. The summary destruction of property appears to be the rule

rather than the exception to the City's practices when conducting sweeps.

The press has widely reported on these practices.

56. The City employees a team consisting of approximately eight

members, whose job it is to conduct "sweeps" on an ongoing basis. The

City refers to this team as the "SPO/SNO Enforcement Team."

57 . In a typical sweep, the City employees cordon off the area being

swept. The homeless residents of the area are excluded, and typically

allowed to take only what they can carry with them, and are only given a

short time to gather their things. The rest of their belongings are

considered "abandoned" and/or "rubbish" and are summarily destroyed

58. If the victims of a sweep are lucþ, they will have received some

form of notice that the sweep is to occur, in which case they can move

more of their possessions than if they are rousted from their makeshift

shelters and tents and can save only what they can hurriedly gather and

physically carry.
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59. Sometimes victims receive no notice, and are away from their

shelters for vanou.s reasons, such as work, and then cannot save any of

their property from destruction.

60. What they leave behind is then considered "abandoned" and

"trash," though the rightful owners of the property would not consider the

"abandonment" voluntarSr or their property "trash." It is then summarily

placed in a dump truck and destroyed. As one homeless person with a

five year-old daughter told the paper about these experiences,

"[s]ometimes we can't carry it all, so things get thrown out." See

Aduocates Decry Homeless Suteeps, Honolulu Star Advertiser (June 13,

2015) available at

htto: / /www. staradvertiser.com /news /20150613 Advocates decrv home

less sweeos- html?id=30725031 1.

6I. For example, the Star Advertiser recently described a sweep of

Kuwili Street in which it interviewed two victims who lost their shelters in

the sweep. These individuals had their shelters disassembled by the

City's "SPO/SNO Enforcement Team." Despite the fact that the SNO

requires the impoundment and holding of disassembled shelters and

materials for 30 days, ROH 29-16.3(b), the City simply threw everything

into a dump truck. One of the victims was also forced to leave behind a
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box of tools, pillows, blankets, and shoes, because he could not carry it

away. See Special Creu Clears Homeless Camps As It Enforces 2 Citg

Bans, Honolulu Star-Advertiser (August 19,2015) available at

htto: / /www.staradvertiser. com homeless / 2O150819 special crew clears/

_homeless camps as it enforces 2 city bans.html

62. The City spends $t5,0OO a week on homeless sweeps and

destroys four to eight tons of what it calls tunk and garbage." See

Aduocates Decry Homeless Sueeps, Honolulu Star Advertiser (June 13,

2015) available at

http: / /v¡ww.staradvertiser.com/news / 20150613 Advocates decry home

less sweeps.html?id:3}725031 1. The City's description of these items as

'Junk," however, ignores the reality and hardship of life on the streets:

this so-called'Junk" includes the materials homeless persons use to

constrrrct their shelters. It includes items that are valuable and hard to

replace, like bedding, mattresses, and clothing, which they cannot cüry

away or move no matter what notice is given to them. And, as Plaintiffs'

stories below indicate, often it includes even more obviously valuable

material, like identification documents, medicine, and food. The City is

required to preserve these items for reclamation under the already

inadequate procedural provisions of the SPO and SNO. Instead the
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property is often summarily destroyed by the City in violation of its own

laws.

63. Plaintiffs do not object to the disposal of ltazardous items.

They do, however, want the City to stop coercing them into leaving behind

their belongings; categorizingthe property they had no choice but to leave

behind as "abandoned trash"; and then summarily destroying their

property

64. The repeated, immediate destruction of the property of the

homeless, coupled with the close involvement and supervision by the

Mayor's office of this practice, is enough to establish that, despite the

dictates of the SNO and SPO, the City has a policy and practice of

immediately destroying the property of Plaintiffs and other homeless

individuals

65. The City has failed to adequately train its employees on the

treatment of the property of the homeless. This failure of training is

evident from the pervasive and rampant violations of the City's own (albeit

constitutionally inadequate) standards it has set for itself regarding the

treatment of homeless individuals' property, as set forth in the SNO and

SPO.
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V. LEAD PLAINTIFF ALLEGATIONS

Tracy and Tabatha Martin and T.M.

66. Plaintiffs Tabatha and Tracy Martin, and their 4-year-old

daughter T.M. , ate homeless and poor. They sleep in a makeshift shelter

along Ohe Street in the Kaka'ako area of Honolulu.

67. In2013, the Martins were living in a 1-bedroom apartment in

Pearl City, where the rent was $ t,250 a month.

68. Mrs. Martin provided full-time care for their young daughter,

while Mr. Martin worked full-time at a restaurant. Mr. Martin had been

promoted from an hourly kitchen worker to the position of kitchen

ma.nager, such that he was paid $SSO.OO every other week - a salary that

was less than what he made as an hourly worker eligible for overtime.

Because Mr. Martin was making less money as a result of his promotion,

the Martins fell behind on their rent.

69. In May 2OI3, Mr. Martin had a heart attack. Without his

income, they could not afford the apartment, and became homeless. They

carne to the Kaka'ako area in August 2013. They purchased a new tent

and other equipment to allow them to live on the street.

70. In November or December of 2O13, City officials woke the

Martins up at approximately 6:00 a.m. While the Martins were still inside
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their tent sleeping, City officials put red plastic tape around the entirety

of their tent, then ordered them out. Honolulu Police Department ("HPD")

officials informed the Martins that if they did not get out of their tent -
which they had recently purchased from Wal-Mart for approximately

$1OS.OO - they would be arrested.

7 I. The Martins informed the City officials that they wanted to get

Mr. Martin's heart medication and their identification documents out of

the tent. An HPD Officer warned them that if they crossed the red tape

they would be arrested and that their daughter, T.M. - who was two years

old at the time - would be taken away. City officials forced the Martins'

belongings into a plastic bin, and the Martins watched as their tent was

destroyed

72. The City seized Mr. Martin's heart medication. The Martins did

not have health insurance, and they worried about trying to replace the

medication given that the City could simply seize their belongings again

at any time.

73. The City seized all of T.M.'s Christmas gifts that others had

given her.

74. The City seized the Martins'marriage certificate, T.M.'s birth

certificate, and Mr. Martin's birth certificate, Social Security Card and
942624u1t12146-1 29

Case 1:15-cv-00363   Document 1   Filed 09/16/15   Page 29 of 48     PageID #: 29

Appendix A



State Identification cards. Among other things, the City also seized the

Martins'clothes, their tent, and their propane stove, as well as T.M.'s

diapers, backpack, clothing, and toys.

75. The Martins did not receive any kind of receipt or notice from

the City indicating that they could retrieve their property. Indeed, they

did not believe they could retrieve their property even if they wanted to,

because the City had seized their identification documents; this belief was

supported by the Martins'conversation with one individual in Kaka'ako

who actually attempted to retrieve his property, but was unable to do so

because he lacked identification and/or could not prove that the property

belonged to him. As such, the Martins believed that any attempt to

retrieve their property would be futile

76. On November 13,2OI4, tl:e City again seized the Martins'

property. This time, there was no pretense about impounding the

property: City officials put the Martins'belongings directly into a City

garbage truck and destroyed it all. The City did not provide the Martins

with advanced warning or notice of any kind that it intended to seize their

property.
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77. Among other things, the City seized (und immediately

destroyed) the Martins' Thanksgiving turkey, shelter materials, coolers,

and books for their daughter.

78. The City did not provide the Martins with a receipt or notice of

any kind indicating whether, or how, they could retrieve their property.

The City has never compensated them for seizing, and destroying, their

property.

79. The Martins are afraid of another sweep. If the City again

confiscates their belongings, Mr. and Mrs. Martin and 4-yearold T.M. will

have no shelter of any kind, and they fear they will go hungry.

Kionina Keneso and her Granddaughter, K.H.

80. Ms. Keneso works full-time at a fast-food restaurantt, making

approximately $g.ZS an hour. She also provides full-time care for her 3-

year-old granddaughter, K.H. (Ms. Keneso's older sister takes care of

K.H. while Ms. Keneso is working.) She is 58 years old.

81. Even working full-time, Ms. Keneso cannot afford rent for an

apartment for herself and K.H. in Honolulu. At night, she and her

granddaughter sleep on a sidewalk in urban Honolulu in a makeshift

shelter constructed from a tarp and tent pieces.
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82. On November L3,2OI4, CíW officials seized - and immediately

destroyed - Ms. Keneso's and K.H.'s property. Among other things, City

officials took Ms. Keneso's stove, two large bags of clothing (including

virtually all of K.H.'s clothing), toys for K.H. (including blocks and stuffed

animals), and her two tents.

83. As the sweep began, Ms. Keneso moved some of her belongings

into the adjacent park. When she returned to where her tent was

(approximately 15 minutes later), her tent and the rest of her belongings

were gone. She asked one of the City workers what happened to the tent,

and he told her that her property had been dumped into the City garbage

truck

84. Ms. Keneso then went to retrieve the property she had placed

in the park. The City had seized and destroyed that property, too, despite

the fact that the SPO does not allow for immediate impound (or

destruction) of property and the SNO did not apply (because the property

was not on a sidewalk)

85. City officials also seized and destroyed her food, which was

particularly hard on Ms. Keneso, because she and her granddaughter

then had nothing to eat. City officials even seized and destroyed the hot,

cooked food that was with her few belongings in the park.
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86. The City did not provide Ms. Keneso with a receipt or notice of

any kind, nor did it provide Ms. Keneso with advanced warning or notice

of any kind that it intended to seize her property. The City never provided

her with information on whether, or how, she could retrieve her property.

The City has never compensated her for seizing, and destroying, her

property.

87 . Ms. Keneso's native language is Chuukese. She speaks and

reads only a limited amount of English. K.H. likewise speaks Chuukese

and only a limited amount of English.

88. Ms. Keneso is afraid of another syweep. If the City again

confiscates her belongings, she will have nowhere to sleep, and fears that

she and 3-year-old K.H. may starve.

Tanako and Gabriel Yug and G.Y.

89. Plaintiffs Tanako and Gabriel Yug and G.Y. are poor and were

homeless for about ayear. They have now found an apartment, but if Mr.

Yug loses his job again, they fear they could be homeless again soon. Mr

and Mrs. Yug serve as gua-rdians for their 3-year-old nephew, G.Y., whom

they consider to be their own son.

90. Mr. and Mrs. Yug have lived in Hawai'i for more than twenty

yea-rs. They met on Maui, and thereafter moved to Kailua-Kona, where
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Mr. Yug worked for a hotel. In June 2014, they moved to Oahu from

Kailua-Kona when the hotel transferred Mr. Yug to Honolulu. Three

months after moving to O'ahu, his position at the hotel was eliminated,

and he was laid off. They could no longer afford their rent, and became

homeless in October 2OI4

9I. The Yugs came to Kaka'ako in November 2OI4. Very shortly

after they arrived, City officials seized, and immediately destroyed, the

Yugs'property. Among other things, City officials seized and destroyed

two baskets of clothes, shoes, pots and pans, and a backpack. City

officials also seized and destroyed a bag belonging to Mrs. Yug's daughter

- who \Mas pregnant at the time - containing the daughter's medication,

State ID, birth certificate, Social Security card, and U.S. citizenship

documents.

92. The City did not provide the Yugs with a receipt or notice of any

kind, nor did it provide the Yugs with advanced warning or notice of any

kind that it intended to seize their property. The City never provided

them with information on whether, or how, they could retrieve their

property. The City has never compensated them (or Mrs. Yug's daughter)

for seizing, and destroying, their property.
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93. Mr. and Mrs. Yug fear that they will be homeless again and

thus subject to the City's sweeps. Their economic situation is precarious,

and if they find themselves homeless again they will be in the s¿une

position they found themselves in up until very recently: living on the

streets, struggling and failing to find even temporar¡r shelter, and living in

constant fear that the City will destroy their property again in a sweep.

Diana Choniong and Rimuo Runte

94. Diana Choniong and her husband, Rimuo Runte, are homeless

and poor. Until very recently they were staying in a tent alongside Ohe

Street in Kaka'ako.

95. Ms. Choniong and Mr. Runte were staying in the Kaka'ako area

during the November 2OI4 sweep. The City took their tent and threw it in

the trash. City ofnicials destroyed clothes, food, school supplies for their

children, and more. The City did not provide them with any notice before,

during, or after the sweep as to how they may reclaim their property. The

City never compensated them for seizing and destroying their property.

Jon Josephson

96. Until recently, Mr. Josephson was homeless and living in a

tent in Kaka'ako. He currently has found temporaÐ/ housing, but he is

poor and is at a substantial risk of becoming homeless again soon.
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97 . On November 13, 2Ol4 , }l,lr. Josephson was living in a tent in

the Kaka'ako area. He was working for a contractor doing construction

work in rWaikiki, and he left Kaka'ako early that morning for work.

98. V/hen he returned to his tent after work, all of his belongings

had been taken. The City had conducted a sweep and had summarily

destroyed all his property while he was at work

99. No reasonable person would have considered his property

abandoned or garbage.

1OO. Mr. Josephson did not receive notice prior to the November 13,

2OL4 sweep. There did not appear to be any prior notice of the sweep

posted on trees or anywhere else before the sweep.

101. Mr. Josephson also did not receive a receipt for his property or

any notice telling him what the City had done \Mith it, or how to reclaim it.

There was no receipt or subsequent notice regarding reclaiming the

property posted in the area nea.r to where the City seized his possessions.

IO2. The City seized and destroyed almost everything Mr. Josephson

owned except the clothes he was wearing. The City took his ID. They

took his tent, air mattress, air pump, and laptop. They took his

notebooks containing private writings that he had spent much time on,

which are effectively irreplaceable
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103. The City's seizure of Mr. Josephson's property further

exacerbated his poverty. For example, Mr. Josephson had to take a week

off of work to replace the items that the City seized, and those lost wages

created a serious hardship for Mr. Josephson.

Norma Manuel

IO4. Until recently, Ms. Manuel was homeless and living in a tent in

Kaka'ako. She and her family have a substantial risk of being homeless

agaln soon.

1O5. On November 13,2014, Ms. Manuel was homeless and living in

Kaka'ako as the City did a sweep of Ohe Street. City officials seized and

destroyed her property.

106. Neither Ms. Manuel nor her family members received any

warning or notice that the City was going to conduct a sweep.

IO7. Ms. Manuel speaks English, but her native language is

Chuukese. No one from the City ever spoke to her in Chuukese or gave

her any papers that were written in Chuukese.

108. After the sweep, Ms. Manuel did not receive any receipt from

the City, or any notice stating where she could reclaim her items. The

City has not compensated her for seizing and destroying her property.
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Mensi Rikat

109. Ms. Rikat has lived alongside Ohe Street in Kaka'ako for

about four years, and was living there on November 13,2OL4.

110. On November 13,2014, Cíty workers appeared with police

officers and garbage trucks. The City did not provide any prior notice

that they were sweeping the area.

1 1 1. The City took Ms. Rikat's property, which was obviously not

abandoned, and threw it in the trash. The City threw her tent in the

garbage. City officials seized and destroyed her bag, which was inside the

tent, her vital documents, and myriad household goods like cooking

equipment and sleeping materials.

II2. The City never gave Ms. Rikat a receipt for her property, and

she did not receive any kind of notice from the City, either before or after

the sweep, about having to move her property or about how she could get

her property back. Nobody from the City spoke to her about the sweep in

any way in her native language of Chuukese.

Ari Roden

113. Mr. Roden is homeless. He has been living in a tent in

Kaka'ako for about a year. His native language is Chuukese, but he

speaks English.
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II4. On November 13, 2OI4 , ll,Ir. Roden was present when the City

conducted the sweep of the Kaka'ako area. He received no prior notice

that the City was going to sweep the area. The City took away almost

everything Mr. Roden had, including his tent, his blankets, and his

clothes. City officials took food, like canned goods, and his stove and

cooking utensils, and immediately destroyed the items by putting them in

the trash.

115. The City did not grrre Mr. Roden any receipt for his property or

notice or other instructions on how to reclaim it. Nobody from the City

spoke to him about the sweep in any way in his native language of

Chuukese.

Snopia lVeinei

1 16. Ms. Weinei is homeless. She lives in a tent in Kaka'ako with

two of her children, a 15 year-old girl and a seven year-old boy.

II7. On November 13,2014, Ms. V/einei was living in a tent along

Ohe Street in Kaka'ako when the City did its sweep

118. The City roped off the area- it was sweeping with red tape. Ms.

Weinei wanted to move her belongings, but the City workers would not let

her touch her things after they had put red tape along the area where she

was living.
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119. It was obvious that Ms. Weinei's property was not abandoned

and not trash.

I2O. The City took Ms. \Meinei's tent, clothes, food, cooking utensils,

and pots and pans.

I2L The City did not gloe Ms. Weinei any notice beforehand of the

sweep or that her property might be seized.

I22. The City did not gr,re Ms. Weinei any receipt for her property or

any instructions on how to reclaim her possessions, nor did it

compensate her for seizing and immediately destroying her property.

I23. Although Ms. Weinei speaks some English, her native language

is Chuukese. The City never commu.nicated to her in Chuukese about

the sweeps in any way.

VI. CLASS ALLEGATIONS

I24. The Named Plaintiffs (Tabatha Martin, Tracy Martin, T.M.,

Kionina Keneso, K.H., Tanako Yug, Gabriel Yrg, G.Y., Diana Choniong,

Jon Josephson, Norma Manuel, Mensi Rikat, Ari Roden, Rumio Runte,

and Snopia V/einei) bring this action on behalf of a class of all those

similarly situation pursuant to Rules 23(al, (b)(2), and (b)(3) of the Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure.
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L25. The Named Plaintiffs seek to represent the following class:

All homeless or formerly homeless individuals whose property
was seized and immediately destroyed by the City and County
of Honolulu.

126. The class is so numerous that joinder of all members is

impractical. The precise number of class members and their addresses

are unknown to named Plaintiffs. Although there are cu.rrently

approximately 2,OOO unsheltered homeless on any given night, the

number of individuals who have been unsheltered over the class period is

higher. Upon information and belief, a substantial portion of these

unsheltered homeless have had property seized and immediately

destroyed at some point by the City.

L27 . Common question of law and fact exists, including, but not

limited to the following:

a. V/hether the City's practices deprive or have deprived the

class members of their property in violation of the United

States Constitution;

b. Whether the Plaintiffs and the class members are entitled to

injunctive relief prayed for below;

c. V/hether the Plaintiffs and the class members are entitled to

the declaratory relief prayed for below;
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d. The nature of such injunctive and declaratory relief; and

e. Whether the Plaintiffs and the class members are entitled to

damages for the value of their lost property or other

measllrements of damages.

I28. The questions of law and fact that are common to the class

predominate over questions affecting only individual members, such that

a class action is superior to other methods of fairly and effectively

adjudicating the controversy between the class members and Defendant

I29. Plaintiffs' claims are typical of the class, because they have all

had property seized from them and destroyed immediately by the City in

violation of their constitutional rights. These are the same injuries that

the members of the class have suffered, and which they will suffer in the

future absent the declaratory and injunctive relief prayed for below, given

that it has been the practice of the City to immediately seíze and destroy

property in its homeless sweeps.

130. The named Plaintiffs will fairly and adequately represent the

interests of the class. Plaintiffs possess the requisite personal interest in

the subject matter of the lawsuit. The class is represented by counsel

experienced in class action and civil rights litigation and in the statutory

and constitutional provisions at issue in this case.
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131. The City has acted and continues to act on grounds that apply

generally to the Class such that fìnal injunctive or declaratory relief is

appropriate for the Class as a whole.

DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

I32. An actual and immediate controversy has arisen and now

exists between Plaintiffs and Defendant, which parties have genuine and

opposing interests and which interests are direct and substantial.

Defendant has failed and continues to fail to respect Plaintiffs'

constitutional rights for at least the reasons set forth herein. Plaintiffs

are, thus, entitled to a declaratory judgment as well as such other and

further relief as may follow from the entry of such a declaratory judgment.

133. Plaintiffs have no adequate remedy at law. Unless enjoined by

the Court, Defendant will continue to infringe upon Plaintiffs' statutorily

and constitutionally protected rights and will continue to inflict

irreparable injury. This threat of injury to Plaintiffs from continuing

violations requires injunctive relief.
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COUNT I
VIOLATION OF THE FOURTH AIVIENDMENT TO THE I .S.

coNsTrTUTroN (UNREASONABLE SETZURE)
ACTIONABLE PURSUANT TO 42 U.S.C. S 1983

I34. Plaintiffs incorporate each and every allegation above as

though fully set forth here.

135. The Fourth Amendment to the Constitution provides that:

The right of the people to be secure in their persons,
houses, papers, and effects, against unreasonable
searches and seizures, shall not be violated, and no
warrants shall issue, but upon probable cause, supported
by oath or affirmation, and particularly describing the
place to be searched, and the persons or things to be
seized.

136. As set forth above, Defendant has deprived Plaintiffs of their

constitutional rights pursuant to the Fourth Amendment to the

Constitution by, inter alia, unreasonably seizing and immediately

destroying their property.

I37 . As a direct and proximate result of the violations of Plaintiffs'

constitutional rights by Defendant City, as set forth herein, Plaintiffs have

suffered actual and nominal damages, inconvenience, mental and

emotional distress, litigation expenses, and other compensatory damages,

in an amount to be determined by the Court.
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COUNT II
VIOLATION OF FOURTEENTH AIVIENDMENT TO THE U.S.

coNsTrTUTroN (DUE PROCESSI
ACTIONABLE PURSUANT TO 42 U.S.C. S 1983

138. Plaintiffs incorporate each and every allegation above as

though fully set forth here.

139. The Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution provides that:

No state shall make or enforce any law which shall
abridge the privileges or immunities of citizens of the
United States; nor shall any state deprive any person of
life, liberty, or property, without due process of law; nor
deny to any person withín its jurisdiction the equal
protection of the laws.

I4O. As set forth above, Defendant has deprived Plaintiffs of their

constitutional rights pursua.nt to the Fourteenth Amendment to the

Constitution by, inter alia, unreasonably seizing and immediately

destroying their property without adequate due process of the law

I4I. As a direct and proximate result of the violations of Plaintiffs'

constitutional rights by Defendant City, as set forth herein, Plaintiffs have

suffered actual and nominal damages, inconvenience, mental and

emotional distress, litigation expenses, and other compensatory damages,

in an amount to be determined by the Court.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of all persons

similarly situated , pray that this Court:

A. Assume jurisdiction over this action;

B. Certify a class of individuals similarly situated to the

Named Plaintiffs;

C. Issue a declaratory judgment stating that Defendant has

violated Plaintiffs'rights for at least the reasons set forth

herein;

D. Issue a preliminary and permanent injunction enjoining

Defendant (and its divisions, officers, servants, employees,

attorneys, agents and representatives, successors-in-

office and all persons acting or purporting to act in

concert or in cooperation with Defendant or pursuant to

Defendant's authority) from subjecting Plaintiffs to the

customs, policies, practices, rules, regulations, acts and

omissions set forth in this Complaint;

E. Retain jurisdiction over Defendant until such time as the

Court is satisfied that Defendant's unlawful customs,
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policies, practices, rules, regulations, acts and omissions

complained of herein no longer exist and will not recur;

F. Award actual, nominal, and punitive (against any

individual Defendants) damages to Plaintiffs for the

violations of clearly established law set forth herein;

G. Award reasonable attorneys'fees, costs and other

expenditures incurred as a result of bringing this action,

pursu.ant to any applicable law; and

H. Order such other relief as this Court deems just and

proper.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs hereby demand a trial by jury on all issues triable

herein.
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DATED: Honolulu, Hawai'i, September 16, 2015.

PAUL ALSTON
NICKOLAS A. KACPRO\MSKI
KRISTIN L. HOLLAND
KEE M. CAMPBELL
Alston Hunt Floyd & Ing

DANIEL L. GLUCK
MANDY J. FINLAY
ACLU of Hawaii Foundation

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
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JS44 (Rev r2lr2) cIvIL COVER SHEET
The t and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service ofpleadings or other papers as required by law, except asprov corrt. This form, approved by the Judicial Confèrence of thè United States in September I 974; is requ'íred for thd uie of the ilerk of tourt for thäpurp vil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON NDXT PAGI; OF'THIS FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS
TABATHA MARTIN, TRACY MARTIN, T.M., a minor, by her parents and
next friends TABAïHA MARTIN and TRACY MARTIN, KIONINA
KENESO, K.H., a minor by her next friend KIONINA KENESO, et al.,

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Honolulu
(EXCEPT TN U,S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

(C) Attorneys (Firm Nome, Address, and Telephone Number)

See attachment

IL BASIS OF JURISDI CTION ¡r to"" on " x " in one Box o nty)

f, I U.S. Govemnent ts 3 Federal Question
Plaintiff (U.5, Government Not q Pqrly)

DEFENDANTS
CITY AND COUNry OF HONOLULU, a municipal corporation, and
DOE EMPLOYEES OF CITY AND COUNry OF HONOLULU 1-100,

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant Honolulu
(IN U.S. PI.AINT]FF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: tN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF
THE TRACT OF LAND INVOLVED

Attorneys (If Knovn)

Department of the Corporation Counsel, City and County of Honolulu,
530 S. King Street, Room 110, Honolulu, H196813;telephone (808)
768-5193; fax (808) 768-5105; email cor@honolulu.gov

III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES (Ptøce an "x" inone Boxfor ptoinriff
(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Boxfor Defendant)

PTF DEF PTF DEF
CitizenofThisslate O I O I fncorporatedo/PrincipalPlace O 4 A4

ofBusincss In This St¿te

CitizenofAnothcrStatc A2 E 2 fncoryoratçdandPtincipalPlace O 5 O5
of Business In Another St¿te

at 2 US Govemmenl
Defendmt

D 4 Diversity
(lnd¡cate C¡t¡ze^th¡p ofPqrties ¡n lten Ill)

IV. NATURE OF SUIT an "X" in One Box

D I l0 Insurmce
D 120 Marine
l"l 130 Miller Act
D 140 Negotiabte InsFument
O 150 Recovery ofOverpayment

Citizen or Subject ofa J 3 O 3 Foreign Nation

D4 Reinstatedor O 5Transfenedfrom O 6 Multidistrict
Reopened Another District Litigation

Statute under you are filing (Do not cite jurßdict¡onûl sTrtutes unl6s d¡versity)

o 6 tr6

& Enforcçmont of
I l5 I Medicre Act
O 152 Recovery ofDefaulted

Student Loans
(Excludes Veterils)

O 153 Recovery ofOverpayment
of Veteril's Bencfits

fl 160 Stockholders' Suits
O 190 Otlrer Contract

O 195 Contract P¡oduct Liability
D 196 Franchise

O 210 Lmd Condemation
O 220 Foreclosure

O 230 Rent Lease & Ejectrnont
O 240 Torts to Lmd
D 245 Tort Product Liability
O 290 All Other Real Property

V. ORIGIN (Place on "X" ín one Box onty)

!l Original 32 Removedfrom
Proceeding State Court

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

D 375 False Cl¿ims Act
O 400 Sfatc Reappofionment
O 410 AnriFust
O 430 Banks md Bmking
O 450 Comerce
O 460 Deportation
O 470 Racketeer lnflucnced md

Compt Organizations
D 480 Consumer Credit
O 490 Cable/SatTV
O 850SecuritiesiComoditieV

Exchuge
O 890 Other Statutory Actions
O 891 Agricultural Acts
O 893 Enviromental Matters
O 895 Frsodom of lnfomation

Act
O 896 Arbit¡ation
O 899 Administrative Procedure

Act/Review or Appeal of
Agency Decision

D 950 Constitutionality of
Slate Statutes

VII. REQUESTED IN
COMPLAINT:

O 3 Remanded from
Appellate Court

Cite the U.S
42 U.S.C. Section 1983

cause:
in violation of Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments

E CUSCTmTHISISACLASSACTTON DEMAND$
UNDER RULE 23, F R Cv P

CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:

JURYDEMAND¡ ! Yes úNo

'ts RÄNI'RITPTI¡Y

O 422 Appeal 28 USC 158

O 423 Withdrawal
28 USC 157

O 625 Drug Related Seizure
ofProperty 2l USC 881

D 690 Other

o
D
D

820
830
840

Copynghts
Patent

T¡ademuk

PERSONAL INJURY
O 310 Airplme
D 315 Airplme Product

Liability
D 320 Assault, Libel &

Slader
O 330 Federal Employers'

Liability
D 340 Muinc
D 345 Muine Product

Liability
O 350 Motor Vehicle
0 355 Moto¡ Vehicle

Product Liability
O 360 Othçr Pçrsonal

Injury
D 362 Personal lnjury -

Medica.l Maloractice

PERSONAL INJURY
D 365 Personal lnjury -

Product Liability
O 367 Hcalth Cre/

Phmaceutical
Personal lnjury
Product Liability

O 368 Asbestos Personal
fnjury Product
Liability

PERSONAL PROPERTY
O 370 Other Fraud
O 371 Truth in Lending
O 380 O¡her Personal

Property Dmage
O 385 Propçrty Dmage

Product Liability

o 86r HrA(r395fÐ
O 862 Black Lug (923)
õ 863 DIwC/Dlww (40s(g))
O 364SSIDTitIEXVI
D 86s RSI (40s(g))

f-lvlt, RtclHTs

D 7[0 Fair Labor Stmdüds
Act

D 720 Labor/lvfmagemenl
Relations

D 740 Railway Labor Aot
D 751 Fmily md Medical

Leave Act
0 790 OtherLabor Litigation
0 791 Employee Retirement

Income Secùrity Açt

tMMt(tR^'t't(tN

!l 440 Other Civil Rights
O 441 Voting
fl 442 Employment
D 443 Housing/

Accotmodations
D 445 Amcr ilDisabilities -

Employment
O 446 Ane¡ w/Disabilities -

Other
O 448 Education

Habeu Corpu:
O 463 Alicn Dctainee

O 510 Motions to Vacate
Sentence

D 530 General
O 535 Death Penalty

Oaher:
D 540 Mmdanus & Other
D 550 Civil Rights
D 555 Prison Condition
D 560CivilDetainee-

Conditions of
Confinement

D 462 Naturalization Application
D 465 Other Inurigralion

Actions

O 870 Tues (U.S. Plaintiff
or Defendmt)

O 871 IRS-Third Pa¡ty
26 USC 7609

VIII. RELATED CASE(S)
IF ANY ruDGE DOCKET NUMBER

RECEIPT # AMOLINT

(See ißtuct¡ons):

APPLYING IFP ruDCE MAG. JUDGE

SICNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF
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Civil Information Sheet fcontinuedl:

ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFFS

ALSTON HUNT FLOYD & ING
Attorneys at Law, A Law Corporation

PAUL ALSTON TT26
NICKOLAS A. KACPROWSKI 8627
KRISTIN L. HOLLAND 10063
KEE M. CAMPBELL 9168
1001 Bishop Street, Suite 1800
Honolulu, Hawai'i 96813
Telephone: (B0B) 524-1800
Facsimile: (B0B) 524-4597
E-mail: palston@ahfi.com

nkacprowski@ahfi. com
kholland@ahfi.com
kcampb ell@al:'fi.com

DANIEL L. GLUCK 7959
MANDY J. FINLAY 10064
ACLU of Hawai'i Foundation
P.O. Box 3410
Honolulu, Hawai'i 9680 1

Telephone: (808) 522-5908
Facsimile: (808) 522-5909
E-mail: dgluck@acluhawaii.org

rnfinlay@ac lu h awai i . o r g
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Judy Kitsu - Activity in Case 1:15-cv-00363 Martin v. City and County of Honolulu Complaint

  

This is an automatic e-mail message generated by the CM/ECF system. Please DO NOT RESPOND to 
this e-mail because the mail box is unattended.  
***NOTE TO PUBLIC ACCESS USERS*** Judicial Conference of the United States policy permits 
attorneys of record and parties in a case (including pro se litigants) to receive one free electronic copy of 
all documents filed electronically, if receipt is required by law or directed by the filer. PACER access fees 
apply to all other users. To avoid later charges, download a copy of each document during this first 
viewing. However, if the referenced document is a transcript, the free copy and 30 page limit do not 
apply. 

U.S. District Court 

District of Hawaii 

Notice of Electronic Filing  
 
The following transaction was entered by Kacprowski, Nickolas on 9/16/2015 at 10:16 AM HST and filed on 
9/16/2015  

Docket Text:  
COMPLAINT For Declaratory and Injunctive Relief and Damages against City and County of 
Honolulu ( Filing fee $ 400 receipt number 0975-1606698.), filed by Tabatha Martin. 
(Attachments: # (1) Civil Cover Sheet)(Kacprowski, Nickolas)  

 
1:15-cv-00363 Notice has been electronically mailed to:  
 
Nickolas A. Kacprowski     nkacprowski@ahfi.com, jkitsu@ahfi.com  
 
1:15-cv-00363 Notice will not be electronically mailed to:  

The following document(s) are associated with this transaction: 

From:    <hid_resp@hid.uscourts.gov>
To:    <hawaii_cmecf@hid.uscourts.gov>
Date:    9/16/2015 10:16 AM
Subject:   Activity in Case 1:15-cv-00363 Martin v. City and County of Honolulu Complaint
Bc:    Judy Kitsu

Case Name: Martin v. City and County of Honolulu
Case Number: 1:15-cv-00363
Filer: Tabatha Martin
Document Number:1 
Judge(s) Assigned: None (please contact the court)

Document description:Main Document  
Original filename:n/a 
Electronic document Stamp: 
[STAMP dcecfStamp_ID=1095854936 [Date=9/16/2015] [FileNumber=1976465-0
] [6c493ed53d903382d58460ec7c563a1e394430f55080fa2699235014e1f26132822 
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e467b6e13e5f43cee8a44d08b3a96a4112698bb4d6bbbcf7f1cb154000f03]]
Document description:Civil Cover Sheet  
Original filename:n/a 
Electronic document Stamp: 
[STAMP dcecfStamp_ID=1095854936 [Date=9/16/2015] [FileNumber=1976465-1
] [a6106a0149fa9b1be7b29aaa69eb10aab5e599eda0898fcec4842e326f1985fd3a1
4cb1b8364bd7ad3c457b8332531259ac6562f9301cd49b8894fa264de5ac8]]
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